Borough Council of

King’s Lynn & ‘i?-i”—‘i’
West Norfolk } ‘f {

King's Lynn and
West Norfolk Area
Museums
Committee

Agenda

Monday, 12th January, 2026
at 3.00 pm

in the

Council Chamber
Town Hall

Saturday Market Place
King’s Lynn

Available for the public to view on
https://www.youtube.com/user/WestNorfolkBC



https://www.youtube.com/user/WestNorfolkBC




Borough Council of &

By
King’s Lynn & R 3
West Norfolk } f

I -

Kings Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200

Friday 2" January 2026
Dear Member

King's Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Committee which will be
held on Monday, 12th January, 2026 at 3.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Town
Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ to discuss the business
shown below.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive
AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.
2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)

The Committee is invited to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the
previous meeting.

3. Matters Arising

To consider any matters arising.

4. Declarations of Interest (Page 11)

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared. A
declaration of interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not already
declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it relates.
If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should withdraw
from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply
observing the meeting from the public seating area.



5. Report of the Assistant Head of Museums (Pages 12 - 26)

6. True's Yard Report (Pages 27 - 30)

7. Stories of Lynn and Tourist Information Centre Visitor Figures (Page 31)

8. Review on Marketing Plans (Pages 32 - 52)

9. Updates on Local Government Reorganisation

10. ltems for the next Agenda

To consider any additional items for the next Agenda.

11. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums
Committee is scheduled to take place on 16" March 2026 at 2.00pm in the
Council Chamber, Town Hall, King’s Lynn.

To:
King's Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums Committee:

Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk

Councillors Bland, Bubb, Lintern, de Whalley and Kemp

Norfolk County Council

Councillors Bambridge and Chenery (3 vacancies)
Ex Officio

Councillor Ward (Chair, Norfolk Joint Museums Committee)
Councillor Kybird (Vice Chair, Norfolk Joint Museums Committee)

Co-opted Non-Voting Members

Ms Lindsey Bavin, True’s Yard Heritage Museum Manager
Officers

Dr Robin Hanley, Assistant Head of Museums

Oliver Bone, Curator of the Lynn Museum

Mr Steve Miller, Head of Norfolk Museums and Archaeology Service
Mr Laine Tisdall, Committee Officer at Norfolk County Council



Agenda Item 2

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

KING'S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK AREA MUSEUMS COMMITTEE

Minutes from the Meeting of the King's Lynn and West Norfolk Area
Museums Committee held on Monday, 15th September, 2025 at 2.00 pm in
the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn

PE30 5DQ

PRESENT:

Borough Councillors

Councillors Bland, Bubb (Chair), Lintern, Rose (sub) and de Whalley

County Councillors

Councillors Bambridge and Chenery of Horsbrugh

Officers

Oliver Bone — Lynn Museum
Robin Hanley — Norfolk Museums Service
Hannah Jackson — Norfolk Museums Service (observing)

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

RESOLVED: Councillor Rose who was a substitute for Councillor
Kemp was appointed as Vice Chair for the meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Borough Councillor Kemp,
Councillors Kybird and Ward, Norfolk Joint Museums Committee and
Lindsey Bavin, Manager of True’s Yard Museum.

MINUTES

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2025 were
agreed as a correct record.

MATTERS ARISING

The Chair, Councillor Bubb queried the Committee’s membership and
the Democratic Services Officer clarified that Councillor Kemp was a
Borough Councillor representative for the King's Lynn and West
Norfolk Area Museums Committee but was appointed Vice Chair of the



Committee due to the absence of Norfolk County Council nominees at
the last meeting held on 16" June 2025.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF MUSEUMS

Click here to view the recording of this item on YouTube

The Assistant Head of Museums welcomed Hannah Jackson back as
Operations Manager for the Norfolk Museums Service (Western area),
overseeing Gressenhall, King’s Lynn and Thetford after a secondment
to the Norwich Castle redevelopment project.

The Curator of the Lynn Museum introduced the report on the King’s
Lynn Museum activities in the period from June to July 2025. A copy of
the report is attached to the minutes.

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the following areas of the
report:

1) Exhibitions and events at Lynn Museum
1.1 Current Exhibition May the Toys Be with You
1.2 Previous Exhibition Woof: A Celebration of Dogs
1.3 Forthcoming  Exhibition:  “Unboxed: Discovering Lynn’s
Collections” (working title)
1.4 Family events
1.5 Family Trails
1.6 Mini Museum
1.7 Coffee Mornings

The Curator of the Lynn Museum invited questions from the Committee
in relation to those areas of the report, as summarised below.

County Councillor Bambridge suggested involving Sixth Form students
from King Edward VII School to assist with cataloguing. The Curator of
the Lynn Museum commented that they had taken on two work
experience students from the College of West Anglia and confirmed he
would raise this with Jan Summerfield who was working on a new
programme of volunteering.

Councillor de Whalley asked about challenges in completing the
remaining 13,500 records and the Curator of the Lynn Museum
explained there was some data cleaning needed and added there were
challenges because of missing or disposed items, gaps in historical
records and duplication in the museum catalogue system.



The Chair, Councillor Bubb suggested that a leaflet on the history of
the Lynn Museum building would be useful. The Curator of the Lynn
Museum explained there was a Henry Baines oil painting of the former
Chapel in the Lynn Museum. He added there was also an introductory
panel in the reception area and audio guides had been updated. The
Curator of the Lynn Museum suggested they could have someone
provide a talk as part of the Talks Programme.

The Committee’s attention was drawn further to the following areas of
the report:

2) Newman Legacy project
3) Other Museums developments
3.1 Publicity and promotion
3.2 NMS Teaching Museum Trainees
3.3 Retall offer at Lynn Museum
3.4 Object Photography
3.5 Volunteers
3.7 Finds Ildentification and Recording Day

The Curator of the Lynn Museum invited questions from the Committee
in relation to those areas of the report, as summarised below.

The Chair, Councillor Bubb asked about sales and the Curator of the
Lynn Museum reported they were doing very well, with Star Wars
themed material being particularly popular.

Councillor de Whalley congratulated officers for their work on improving
the sales. Councillor de Whalley raised a question around publicity
feedback and the Curator of the Lynn Museum suggested they would
review marketing efforts and provide an update at the next meeting of
the King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums Committee.

The Chair, Councillor Bubb asked how visitors were informed about the
feedback form. The Curator of the Lynn Museum explained details
were provided in the exhibition area with printed forms and a QR code
which linked to a form online. He added he would check with the front
of house supervisor to see if this was an area they could improve on.

The Assistant Head of Museums highlighted to the Committee that they
had secured full accreditation for all Norfolk Museums Service sites,
including the Lynn Museum and advised an update would be provided
at the next meeting of the King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Area
Museums Committee.

The Committee’s attention was drawn further to the following areas of
the report:

4) Borough Council partnership working



The Assistant Head of Museums highlighted that he had asked
Elizabeth Joisce to provide written updates of work carried out for
future meetings of the King's Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums
Committee.

The Assistant Head of Museums invited questions from the Committee
in relation to that area of the report, as summarised below.

In response to a question from the Chair, Councillor Bubb, the
Assistant Head of Museums explained the first block of artworks from
the town collection would be displayed in the Leader’s office at the
Borough Council of King’'s Lynn and West Norfolk and added they were
looking at other opportunities to get paintings into public locations
subject to conservation security.

In response to questions from Councillor de Whalley, the Assistant
Head of Museums explained that the Guildhall was a Borough Council
led project, and they would make the decisions on the project and
plans for the piano whilst the Norfolk Museums Service could assist
with archaeological interpretation.

The Committee’s attention was drawn further to the following areas of
the report:

5) Learning & Outreach

Councillor Lintern asked on average how many school visits they got in
a year. The Assistant Head of Museums confirmed it averaged
between two to three thousand per year at the Lynn Museum. He
reported that they were reviewing their visitor data collection and that
there was a significant rise in home educated children with new
programmes introduced at Norwich and Gressenhall.

In response to a question from the Chair, Councillor Bubb, the
Assistant Head of Museums explained Norfolk schools always got free
admission to any Norfolk Museums Service site; however they got
charged for additional services beyond that.

The Assistant Head of Museums provided an update on the Kick the
Dust project. He highlighted they were due to publish their new youth
engagement strategy and confirmed members of the King’s Lynn and
West Norfolk Area Museums Committee would receive a copy of the
strategy.

In response to a question from County Councillor Horsbrugh, the
Assistant Head of Museums explained they had robust safeguarding
procedures in place and enhanced training for their project workers
when faced with challenging behaviours from young people. He added
that they had close relationships with partnerships.



The visitor figures were circulated to the Committee at the meeting and
were noted. A copy of the visitor figures is attached to the minutes.

The Curator of the Lynn Museum highlighted that Lynn Museums’
figures were a little down on the year to date compared with last years
figures but reassured the Committee they were well up on previous
years.

RESOLVED: The Committee noted the report.

TRUE'S YARD REPORT

Click here to view the recording of this item on YouTube

County Councillor Bambridge referred to the upcoming exhibition in
commemoration of the 150" anniversary of the Great Gale of 1875 and
commented that they had requested the loan of a model and thanked
Robin Hanley and Oliver Bone for the loan.

RESOLVED: The Committee noted the report.

STORIES OF LYNN AND TOURIST INFORMATION CENTRE
VISITOR FIGURES

Click here to view the recording of this item on YouTube

The visitor figures for the period June to August 2025 were noted. A
copy of the visitor figures is attached to the minutes.

The Chair, Councillor Bubb referred to the pontoon enquiries and
asked whether they turned into bookings. The Democratic Services
Officer confirmed she would get further information around the pontoon
enquiries and circulate a response to the Committee after the meeting.

UPDATES ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION

Click here to view the recording of this item on YouTube

The Chair, Councillor Bubb commented that he had raised a question
at a recent Borough Council Briefing Session around how they were
thinking of funding County wide organisations such as libraries and
museums and explained he did not get a clear answer and asked
Committee Members if they had received any information.

County Councillor Horsbrugh commented that the Norfolk Records
Committee had voted that it stay as one and not divide.

Councillor de Whalley commented that they should know the decision
in March 2026.



The Assistant Head of Museums highlighted that in the last set of draft
minutes from the Norfolk Joint Museums Committee meeting held on
25t July 2025, discussions took place around Local Government
Reorganisation and that there was a preference stated that the
Museums Service for Norfolk continues as a single entity.

Councillor Lintern commented that her understanding was that the
service would remain the same.

Councillor de Whalley proposed that the King’'s Lynn and West Norfolk
Area Museums Committee endorse the recommendations which were
put forward at the Norfolk Joint Museums Committee on 25™ July 2025
for the service to remain as a joint partnership across Norfolk. This
proposal was seconded by Councillor Rose and the Committee
unanimously agreed.

10 ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA

The following item was identified to include on the next Agenda:

e Review on marketing plans

11 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums
Committee was scheduled to take place on 12" January 2026 at
2.00pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place,
King’s Lynn.

The meeting closed at 3.23 pm

10



DECLARING AN INTEREST AND MANAGING
ANY CONFLICTS FLOWCHART

Declare the interest. You have
a conflict and cannot act or
remain in the meeting *

* without a dispensation

Glossary:

DPI: Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest

ERI: Extended Registrable
Interest

Other actions to mitigate
against identified conflicts:

1. Don’t read the papers

2. Tell relevant officers

3. Ask to be removed from any
email recipient chain/group

You have a conflict and
cannot act or remain in
the meeting *

You can remain the meeting if the Chair
agrees, for you to speak in your external
capacity only. Do not vote.

You can take part in discussions but make
clear which capacity you are speaking in.
Do not vote.

START

Does the matter directly
relate to one of your DPIs?

Declare the interest. You have
a conflict and cannot act or
remain in the meeting *

Declare the interest. You have
a conflict and cannot act or
remain in the meeting *

Declare the interest. Are you
or they affected to a greater
extent than most people? And
would a reasonable person
think you are biased because
of the interest?

YES <

NO ¢

NO TO BOTH

Declare the interest for
the sake of openness

and transparency. Then
take part as normal.

Take part
as normal

Declare the
interest. Do you, or
would a reasonable
person think there

are competing
interests between
the Council and the
company/outside
body?

Agenda Item 4

Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk

-> NO

Does the matter directly
relate to the finances or
wellbeing of one of your ERIs?

YES ¥

Does it directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of you,
a relative or a close associate?

YES ¢

4 NO

Does it affect the finances or

wellbeing of you, a relative, a

close associate or one of my
ERIs?

YES ¢

4 NO

Does it relate to a Council
Company or outside body to

which you are appointed by
the Council?

YES 4 NO

Does another interest make
you that feel you cannot act
in a fair, objective or open
manner? Would a

reasonable person knowing

the same interest think you
could not act in a fair,

objective or open manner?

"4
YES TO ONE |

You have a
conflict. Declare
the interest. Do

not participate and
do not vote.



Agenda Item 5

IN 4 If you need this report in large print, audio, Braille,
W TRAN alternative format or in a different language please
contact Robin Hanley on 01603 493663 and we will
do our best to help

communication for all

KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK
AREA MUSEUMS COMMITTEE

12 January 2026 Item No.

KING’S LYNN MUSEUMS REPORT

Report by the Assistant Head of Museums

This report provides information on King’s Lynn Museum
activities in the period from August — December 2025

1 Exhibitions and events at Lynn Museum
1.1 Current exhibition

May the Toys Be with You

11 July 2025 - 31 May 2026

The current exhibition at Lynn Museum, which

— 7] °renedon 11 July, is May the Toys be with You. It
EE wITH showcases one of the UK's finest collections of
0 ¥ vintage Star Wars toys and original cinema posters,
Pcwomeon i T from 1977-1985. It is a celebration of the now highly
R Collectable vintage toy line and of the iconic design
o, AVOHRL Alshie RN WEA S, work and art of the Star Wars movies. This exhibition

8 will run until 31 May 2026.
" | The exhibition is aimed at developing audiences and
is an opportunity to showcase aspects of the Lynn

ll Museum collections including toys and games.
Bl Feedback from visitors suggests the exhibition is
attracting a higher proportion of first-time visitors.

Filming took place at Lynn Museum for an ITV
news piece presented by David Whiteley who
wrote on social media in August: “Any excuse. |
somehow managed to shoehorn a #StarWars
report into tonight's @itvanglia The

#MayThe ToysBeWithYou exhibition has come
out of hyperspace and landed @Lynn_Museum.”

12



The exhibition has generated some helpful publicity. Below are links to
features about the Star Wars themed exhibition:

Facebook (includes the Anglia ITV news report)

Star Wars devotee brings collection to Lynn Museum - BBC News

Star Wars toy collection goes on show at Lynn Museum | Eastern Daily Press

1.2 Forthcoming Exhibition: “Unboxed: Discovering Lynn’s
Collections” (working title)

The 2026-2027 exhibition at Lynn Museum will focus on the breadth of the
King’s Lynn collections. On show will be examples of archaeology, natural
history, geology, fine art, costume and textiles, social history and prints and
drawings from the tens of thousands of items collected since the museum
collections were first established in 1844. The displays will provide a
showcase for the collections-based Newman project and will be a chance to
share items not normally on long-term display such as light sensitive
watercolours and costume.

1.3 Family events

The museum continues to offer events and regular family trails during holiday
periods. The summer holidays in 2025 saw family events on the themes of
World War Two with 30 children and a total of 80 participants, Victorians with
19 children and 56 participants, Medieval Lynn with 27 children and 70
participants and The Bronze Age with 23 children and 67 participants.

For October Half term, the museum held a Dinosaurs and Fossils event with
136 children attending and a total of 253 participants.

1.4 Family Trails

Trails continue to be provided to help children and families enjoy a structured
exploration of the museum. A new trail was offered each week of the summer
holidays. Trails were also offered for Heritage Open Day on 14 September,
October Half term and for the Dragon Festival on 8 November. Over the
reporting period, 677 participants explored the museum using one of the trails.

1.5 Mini Museum

Lynn Museum continues to provide regular activities for our youngest visitors
through the monthly Mini Museum programme. Activities are delivered by the
museum’s learning team. These have included themes of Dinosaurs (18
September), Space (16 October), and Water Animals (20 November). In total
there were 97 participants for these three activities.

1.6 Coffee Mornings

The monthly themed coffee mornings continue to be offered at Lynn Museum,
normally attended by approximately 15 to 30 people. During the reporting
period there have been coffee morning themed around Summer, Crafting, the
Beuys’ Acorn project (see below) and Christmas. In total there have been 109
participants during the reporting period for the four coffee mornings.

1.7 Talks Programme
The Museum normally receives audiences of around 20-30 people for the

13


https://www.facebook.com/reel/1068864452037248
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/cy4ywg43m4wo
https://www.edp24.co.uk/news/25307823.star-wars-toy-collection-goes-show-lynn-museum/

Friday afternoon talks. The themes for talks have been ‘A Walk in the Park’
with Gary Walker, ‘Norwich Castle: Royal Palace Reborn’ with Hannah
Jackson, ‘The Beuys' Acorns: A Circle of Oaks Comes to King's Lynn’ with
Heather Ackroyd and Dan Harvey, and Witchcraft in King’s Lynn with
Rebecca Smith.

1.8 Workshops

During the reporting period, the museum held two Star Wars themed
workshops, a Peg Doll Workshop in August with 17 participants, and a Star
Wars Jedi Workshop in November with 45 participants.

Children enjoying a Star
Wars themed Jedi [}
Workshop at Lynn &2

Museum

1.9 Forthcoming events

Details of forthcoming events at Lynn Museum may be viewed
here: What's on at Lynn Museum - Lynn Museum - Norfolk
Museums Service

2 Newman Legacy project

As previously reported, the Lynn Museum has benefited from a legacy given
specifically for the museum’s use provided by the late Eric and Rita Newman.
The Newmans were siblings who had retired to Congham near King'’s Lynn
with interests in local history and helping children learn. Norfolk Museums
Service is very grateful for the Newmans’ generosity.

Newman Curator Jan Summerfield and Newman NMS Teaching Museum
Trainee (2025-2026) Rosalyn McLean have been working on the cataloguing
and documenting of material in the museum stores, as part of a planned
programme of collections management work supported by the Newman
legacy. Work has included the geology collections, and the audit of this
material is nearly complete. Enhancements to the permanent displays at Lynn
Museum supported by the Newman Legacy include an updated animated film
about the changes in the Seahenge environment and an illustration to show
how the Ichthyosaur fossil on display once swam in the Jurassic sea.

3 Other Museum developments

3.1 Heritage Open Day
Lynn Museum participated in the erttage open days

popular King’s Lynn Heritage Open

Day, this year taking place on Sunday Heritage Open Day at Lynn Museum
14 September. Surelery 14 Seplember B

éearre-draee Breaiimgy recammened
) Fiva FAT e e K Do pepeanne
Free Admission pi o Pl bl
Neragn s day

665 visitors enjoyed the special free
admission day to celebrate the town’s e e ot
heritage. ' ps

)
2% Natbnal Truse  FSToROE G,


https://www.lynnmuseum.norfolk.gov.uk/article/30479/Whats-on-at-Lynn-Museum
https://www.lynnmuseum.norfolk.gov.uk/article/30479/Whats-on-at-Lynn-Museum

3.2 Dragon Festival
Lynn Museum took part in this year’s Dragon

' . Festival held on 8 November. The festival is
\*‘; becoming a new fixture on the town’s calendar of

= public events, this year being delivered as a town-
g wide occasion.

Dragon-themed crafts were offered at the Lynn
Museum. These were inspired by a heraldic
beast model in the museum collection based upon
the sculptures used at the Coronation of Queen
Elizabeth II. A total of 179 people took part in the
museum’s event

Dragon heraldic beast in plaster,
from the museum collections

3.3 Beuys’ Acorns Project.

Lynn Museum participated in this collaborative tree planting art project. The
project started in March 2025, when British artists Ackroyd & Harvey planted a
circle of seven oaks on Harding'’s Pits public space. The circle is part of a
national art project that celebrates the cultural, biological and climatic
significance of trees in a rapidly urbanising world.

At Lynn Museum, with its display of the ancient timber circle of Seahenge, the
artists met with local people at the museum’s Friday Coffee Morning, gave the
October afternoon talk, and on the Saturday 1 November a 2-hour adult
workshop.

For more information about the project, see the link below:
Beuys’ Acorns successfully launched. Wednesday 11 June - GroundWork

Oak saplings planted at Harding’s Pits, King’s Lynn

3.4 Book Launch The Norfolk’s at Gallipoli 1915 by Steve Smith.

On the 11 December Lynn Museum hosted the launch of a new book by
Steve Smith recounting what happened to the 1/5™" Battalion Norfolk Regiment
on the 12 August 1915 during the Gallipoli Campaign. The author wrote:

15


https://www.groundworkgallery.com/events/help-us-celebrate-beuys-acorns-wednesday-june-11/

“Thanks go to Andy Bullen, the current Mayor of King’s Lynn, who came to
infroduce me and thanks ... to the Norfolk Museums Service for letting me talk
... and launch the book at the Lynn Museum.”

28 people attended the event and 17 books were sold in the museum shop.

Author Steve Smith at Lynn Museum

3.5 Publicity and promotion

The Lynn Museum continues to develop its social media presence, with
Twitter and Facebook and now Instagram accounts being actively used and
maintained by staff. The museum’s X (Twitter), Facebook and Instagram
accounts may be seen here:

Lynn Museum (@Lynn_Museum) / X (twitter.com)

Facebook

King’s Lynn Museum on Instagram ¢ Photos and videos

As well as digital delivery, the museum has maintained strong links with local
media outlets including the Lynn News. Staff continue to contribute to a
fortnightly Picture This column, with a focus on local drawings, engravings and
paintings.

A variety of films linked to Lynn Museum are available on the museum’s You
Tube Channel, here: Lynn Museum - YouTube

A number of online exhibitions are available through the Google Arts and
Culture platform: Lynn Museum, King's Lynn, United Kingdom — Google Arts
& Culture

3.6 Norfolk Museums Pass

Lynn Museum is participating in the Norfolk Museums Pass promotion to
encourage people to become members and enjoy a range of benefits
including free admission to all ten of the Norfolk Museums Service museums.

16


https://twitter.com/lynn_museum?lang=en
https://www.facebook.com/LynnMuseumNorfolk/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/locations/108126863912358/kings-lynn-museum/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCXOGwL6IkRLfUIumYaHTLLg/featured
https://artsandculture.google.com/partner/lynn-museum
https://artsandculture.google.com/partner/lynn-museum

Following the full reopening of
Norwich Castle, a new campaign has
been launched to promote the
Museums Pass membership scheme
across Norfolk.

The Access all Eras campaign is
funded through the Arts Council
England Museum Renewal Fund.

Access all eras

https://www.museums.norfolk.gov.uk/article/30735/Norfolk-Museums-Pass

3.7 NMS Teaching Museum Trainees

One-year paid traineeships are offered as part of the Norfolk Museums
Service Teaching Museum scheme, principally funded through the NMS Arts
Council England National Portfolio Organisation programme. For 2025-26
Lynn Museum is hosting Rosalyn Maclean who has been learning about
museum work and making a valuable contribution to the management and
auditing of collections, design, photography and writing.

3.8 Retail offer at Lynn Museum

The museum team continues to develop the retail offer at Lynn Museum
working with the NMS Retail Manager Harriet Johnson. On her recent visit to
the museum, Hat reported an increase of around 33% in shop sales
compared to last year There has been a good boost in exhibition-related sales
thanks to the current Star Wars show. Since the exhibition opened we have
sold over 350 pieces of Star Wars merchandise.

3.9 Volunteers

Volunteering continues to be offered at the museum and there is currently a
project focusing on a collections audit and improvements to collections
documentation.

3.10 Finds Identification and Recording Day

Lynn Museum continues to offer finds identification and recording days in
partnership with Norfolk County Council’s Finds Identification and Recording
Service. These days offer a valuable chance for the NCC Finds team to
connect with finders of archaeological material. A drop-in event was held on
Saturday 4 October, with 24 members of the public engaging with the Finds
Team.

17


https://www.museums.norfolk.gov.uk/article/30735/Norfolk-Museums-Pass

4 Borough Council partnership working

The delivery of NMS services in King’'s Lynn & West Norfolk continues to
operate under the terms of the current Service Level Agreement (SLA) with
the Borough Council. Under an extension to this agreement, NMS continues
to provide curatorial and conservation advice, support and an enquiry service
for those Borough collections currently held in the Town Hall including fine art
and Civic Regalia. NMS staff continue to support Borough Council colleagues
with the development and delivery of relevant cultural and heritage projects
across the Borough, including ongoing support for Towns Fund projects
including the Guildhall. A number of NMS staff support the ongoing work of
the Guildhall project team and NMS is also represented on the Guildhall
Project Board. NMS Learning Manager Colin Stott has recently supported the
recruitment of a new Learning and Engagement Officer for the Guildhall.

Newman Curator, Dayna Woolbright, has contributed to the work on the St
George’s Guildhall project’s Interpretation Strategy and to various events and
exhibitions, working with the Guildhall’s Learning and Engagement Officer at
the Guildhall Team. Dayna’s maternity cover is Jan Summerfield who
continues to support this major project. One project she is leading on is the
conservation of a portrait of James |, earmarked for display the Guildhall.

The Lynn Museum’s free admission period runs from
1 October until the end of March 2025. This free
admission period is provided under the terms of the
Service Level Agreement between the Borough
Council and NMS.

Social media post by Visit West Norfolk
promoting an event at Lynn Museum

4.1 Stories of Lynn — Events & Exhibitions

Norfolk Museums Service continues to support the Borough Council with the
delivery of learning activities at Stories of Lynn in King’s Lynn Town Hall. NMS
manages the Stories of Lynn Learning & Engagement Officer, Elizabeth
Joisce, whose post is co-funded by the Borough Council and the NMS Kick
the Dust programme.

Exhibitions

The exhibition space at Stories of Lynn has displayed the Surviving the
Railway exhibition marking the 80" anniversary of VJ Day. King’s Lynn-based
staff worked with Kate Thaxton, Curator of the Royal Norfolk Regimental
Museum and Sam Wiggin, NMS Teaching Museum Trainee. The display was
formally opened by HRH The Duke of Gloucester in March.

For further information and photographs please visit:

His Royal Highness The Duke of Gloucester visits new exhibition in King’s
Lynn | Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

18


https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/news/article/1836/his_royal_highness_the_duke_of_gloucester_visits_new_exhibition_in_king_s_lynn
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/news/article/1836/his_royal_highness_the_duke_of_gloucester_visits_new_exhibition_in_king_s_lynn

Exhibitions at Stories of Lynn supported by NMS include Making the Rounds:
Stories of Workhouse Nurses Told in Textiles and a forthcoming exhibition
curated, designed and displayed by Time Turners, a King’s Lynn-based group
of Kick the Dust.

Family events

Stories of Lynn continues to offer events and regular family trails during
holiday periods. Throughout the week of the October half term 27-31 October
the Witchcraft Week events attracted 62 children, 8 under 5s and a total of 87
visitors. The Learning and Engagement Officer has also worked with Discover
King’s Lynn to provide craft plans and resources and staff and volunteer time
for the weekend Christmas Activities at the Santa’s Grotto in the high street
from 29 November to 21 December.

Family trails are provided all year round for children and families to enjoy. The
Halloween Trail Witch Hunt was accessed by 40 visitors. On 29 October,
Stories of Lynn debuted it’s first under 5s trail, a differentiated version of Witch
Hunt which was accessed by 12 visitors and received positive feedback.

Forthcoming events include a winter themed trail, Hibernating History, which
will feature in the museum throughout January. In the February half term
Stories of Lynn will host a Regency Ball Day on Tuesday 17 February, to
include activities in the Town Hall.

5 Learning & Outreach

5.1 School visits - Lynn Museum

Lynn Museum continues to offer a range of school workshops run flexibly to
accommodate teachers’ needs. Typical sessions include the Anglo-Saxons,
Vikings, Romans and Iceni, Bronze Age and Seahenge, Stone Age, the
Second World War, Ancient Egyptians, and Homes Long Ago.

School sessions normally follow a pattern of a carousel of different activities
with children learning in a variety of styles. Delivery of sessions is normally
undertaken by a mix of museum staff and freelance costumed interpreters.

The following link for teachers explains what is on offer at Lynn Museum for
pupils at Key Stage 2.
Key stage 2 education at Lynn Museum - Norfolk Museums

Lynn Museum learning staff continue to work closely with Stories of Lynn in
the running of joint school workshops on topics such as Maritime Life, Lord
Nelson, Captain Vancouver, Crime and Punishment, Frederick Savage and
the Lynn Mart, the Great Fire of London, and Floods and Flooding.

Over the Autumn school term, the Museum has hosted 20 school visits with
approximately 720 students. The most popular topics with school were

19


https://www.museums.norfolk.gov.uk/lynn-museum/learning/key-stage-2

Prehistory (Stone Age to Iron Age) and the Tudor/Stuart eras (including Guy
Fawkes & Great Fire of London).

5.2 School visits - Stories of Lynn

Stories of Lynn continues to offer a variety of school workshops, making
adaptations where required to meet the different needs of schools and
teachers. Popular sessions include: Victorian Law and Life, Crime and
Punishment Through Time, First and Second World War, Local Historical
Figures. School sessions contain a carousel of different activities related to
the chosen topic and allow children to move around the museum and learn in
different ways. Delivery of the sessions is usually undertaken by the Learning
and Engagement officer and freelance historical interpreters, working
alongside experienced volunteers. Lynn Museum and Stories of Lynn work
closely together in the running of joint school visits; popular topics for joint
visits include Tudors, Maritime Life, Captain Vancouver, Frederick Savage
and the Great Fire of London.

Stories of Lynn is preparing to trial the running of an EYFS/0-5-year-old group
within the museum. Meeting monthly the group will follow a programme of
activities put together and delivered by the Learning & Engagement Officer.

Home Education groups will be visiting the museum regularly from January
2026 for facilitated visits with the Learning & Engagement Officer and
volunteers. The first session is fully booked, 35 children, to take place
between 10-12pm on 28 January.

In October, Stories of Lynn and the Learning & Engagement Officer facilitated
a visit from Vision Norfolk who were interested in the Gaol House and a
history of Crime and Punishment. The visit included a touch tour of the Gaol
House and it’s various replica punishments, an object handling session with
objects carefully selected from Norfolk Collections by the Newman Curator
and a talk from the Learning & Engagement Officer on the history of
Witchcraft. Vision Norfolk brought 19 visually impaired people for the visit and
are in the process of booking another visit to explore a different topic.

5.3 Kick the Dust — Activity in King’s Lynn

The long-standing Youth Heritage Collective in King’s Lynn, called Time
Turners, continues to meet weekly and is currently researching, designing and
curating a temporary exhibition for Stories of Lynn titled (provisionally)
Norfolk’s Role in the British Civil War.

The Learning & Engagement Officer at Stories of Lynn and KTD project
worker for the west, continues to run popular work experience projects for a
number of schools and colleges. In January, College of West Anglia fashion,
art and history students begin their 6-week project creating and exhibiting
historical costumes. In April, year 10 work experience students from King’s
Lynn Academy will start their 2-week block, completing a project called
Museum of Me. All work experience students get the opportunity to meet and
learn from a variety of professionals within the culture and heritage sector and
see how agencies work alongside each other for common goals.

20



The Learning & Engagement Officer is joining the Norfolk Record Office
project Change Minds in January; a unique heritage and creative wellbeing
project engaging those living with mental health problems. Participants use
archives to research and develop creative responses to the lives of asylum
patients in the past, developing a deeper understanding of their own
experience.

6 Kick the Dust Norfolk — countywide programme update

Background

The Kick the Dust (KTD) programme works with young people aged 13-25,
many of whom are vulnerable and who would not have previously viewed
heritage as relevant to their lives. Initially funded by National Lottery Heritage
Fund from 2018-23, the programme was awarded Arts Council England
National Portfolio Uplift funding 2023-27. This place-based funding targets
young people in the levelling up areas of Great Yarmouth, King’s Lynn and
Thetford. During 2025-26 NMS is also receiving funding from Norfolk Public
Health to support countywide KTD activities that focus on supporting the
mental health and wellbeing of Norfolk young people.

The KTD project worker team operate across Norfolk, using NMS sites and
collections as the focus for their activity. The programme is delivered in
partnership with Norfolk Libraries, YMCA Norfolk and a broad range of other
organisations working with vulnerable young people. KTD has also brought
significant benefits to NMS, producing measurable institutional change.

KTD is based around a three-stage progression model, offering a
development pathway to participating young people:

Player - lighter touch engagements - projects, work placements and taster
activities.

Shaper — where young people they influence the way the museum interacts
with its audiences through engagement in longer-term project groups.
Leader — operating as Young Ambassadors, playing a role in the strategic
Youth Board, or leading their own projects supported by the KTD team.

This progression model supports FLOURISH — NCC’s ambition for all children
and young people.

The primary aims of KTD are to:

e develop transferable work-related skills with the aim of supporting more
working age young people into employment, training or further learning;

o develop digital skills linked to the creative industries, to help address
the digital skills gap in heritage and cultural sectors;

e increase young people’s creative skills and helping them gain a range
of new cultural experiences;

e encourage an appreciation of the history and culture of their local
communities;

10
21



e to measure impact on young people’s skills, confidence and mental
health and wellbeing through a strong and robust evaluation
framework.

Participation data
Total participation between October 2018 and November 2025:

e 6,092 young people engaged in 19,384 interventions
10,275 hours of high-quality activities delivered across Norfolk
82% of all activity currently being designed and led by young people
14 Youth Board members aged 18-25 now operating at strategic level
75 volunteering opportunities created

Breakdown of activity:
e 22% in Kings Lynn, (including Gressenhall)
24% in Thetford
20% in the East (covering Great Yarmouth, Cromer)
24% in Norwich
10% online including the online work experience programme
81% of activity involves young people being part of a long-term group

Recent countywide activity

Heritage Collectives

In recent months young people across the county have been busy, working
alongside professionals, to develop transferable work-related and creative
skills, through the co-production of activity and events, volunteering and work
experience operating at a level that meets their needs.

Norwich Heritage Collective resumed in November. This Autumn Freelance
maker Lisa Smith Clare has been leading the group for the first four weeks
whilst the new KTD Project Worker Emily Hopkins settles into her new role.
Lisa will lead the group to research 1920’s Norwich and this will tie in with
planning for a new exhibition marking 100 years of the Museum of Norwich.

KTD group The Knights of the Sound Table are working on two new projects -
the first is to make a social media publicity campaign for the recently
reopened Norwich Castle Keep using their mascot Snap, and the second is to
create imagined queer characters at Strangers’ Hall in the 17th Century - with
the aim of delivering tours on Norwich Pride 2026. They have submitted at
KTD delegated budget application for the latter to Youth Board members.

In Great Yarmouth three different KTD groups have participated in History in
the Making - an Historic England funded project which explored techniques for
positive self-expression and mental health in the Norfolk Record Office and
NMS collections, specifically Lorina Bulwer’'s embroideries. Make Yarmouth
are currently researching the former Palmers Department Store (home to the
new Great Yarmouth Library) to create a window display.

11
22



National Saturday Club are up and running again with 12 members and a
student ambassador.

Also, in Great Yarmouth project worker Katie Sarginson has delivered the first
KTD Archive Camp. In response to the success of the Our Great Yarmouth
Archive Volunteers and demand for more experience in archives. Participants
learned archive and podcasting skills as well as exploring archive and oral
history collections at Time and Tide, Great Yarmouth Library and the Winter
Gardens.

Thetford Heritage Collective are working on History in the Making, they been
to Gressenhall Farm & Workhouse and will visit Great Yarmouth and meet
with NMS Costume & Textile Curator Ruth Battersby. They will also work with
a south Asian practitioner to create textiles for the Festival of the Punjab. They
have been to Gravesend to meet young people and visit the Gurdwara and
have been planning two Christmas events including the annual Murder
Mystery at Ancient House and Day at the Job Centre Christmas event.

King’s Lynn-based Time Turners have created a temporary exhibition that will
be displayed at Stories of Lynn in March. In January Fashion, Art & History
students from the College of West Anglia will be using their work experience
at Stories of Lynn to create historical costumes for the learning team. Churchill
Park are returning again for a first session to set a brief and then follow up
with ‘check ups’. KTD Learning & Engagement Officer Elizabeth Joisce will
then set half termly design briefs in the spring term.

Youth Board

Long Term member Beth has secured a Trustee Role at Cromwell Museum in
Huntingdon. We have two new members bringing the total to fourteen.

Youth Ambassadors have carried out a detailed review of the new Norwich
Castle Keep displays, identifying further opportunities for young people which
they fed back via the KTD Project Steering Group. They have informed the
NMS Environment Hub Strategy and devised a KTD newsletter & WhatsApp
group which will enable existing members and alumni to keep in touch as well
as being able to celebrate the work of other KTD groups. They have
suggested that members could ‘champion’ KTD groups at PSG meetings etc.
The group are planning a trip to Sutton Hoo to review Anglo Saxon & Viking
interpretation and feedback to the senior curator of archaeology for NMS, Dr
Tim Pestell.

Work Experience

The Autumn iteration of the KTD Online Work Experience continues to grow in
popularity and quickly becomes fully subscribed with a waiting list for the
Spring iteration. The group are looking at ways to improve take up of the NMS
offer of free entry to museum sites for FE & HE students. KTD is partnering
with Norwich University of the Arts to deliver a new work experience pilot
programme that we hope will become an annual fixture. Third year Fine Art
students applied to take part in the programme, which will see them work
alongside both museum and freelance professionals to find out more about
museum jobs and learn to co deliver creative workshops for other KTD
groups.

12
23



We have formed a working group to review and improve our work experience
offer in response to growing demand. KTD has been collaborating with Norfolk
& Suffolk Careers Hub and FE colleges to respond to the changing nature of
their work experience requirements.

Advocacy

The NMS 5-year Youth Engagement Strategy has been published and is
ready for circulation. KTD is at the centre of the strategy and Youth Board
wrote the forward. It builds on KTD work to date. It outlines our vision and
values for the next five years and can be used as widely as possible as an
advocacy tool.

Time and Tide were awarded the Lady Mayhew Award by The Broads Society
for Youth Engagement within the Norfolk Broads, based on previous projects,
including designing Posters for Greater Anglia to encourage visitors to explore
the Broads. Young People from the Make Yarmouth Group accepted the
award of £250 at a special ceremony at Time and Tide. They were wonderful
advocates for the programme.

NMS and NCC continue to work together through Youth Strategy and Youth
Participation meetings and acting KTD Coordinator Tricia Hall made a
presentation about KTD to the NCC Early Help and Intervention Board
meeting in November. KTD has been approached by IWM Duxford to inform
their NLHF bid and Royal Museums Greenwich to inform their youth
engagement programme, they are specifically interested in the institutional
change impact of the programme.

Supporting mental health and wellbeing

Working with Norfolk Public Health and the NCC Performance and
Governance teams, NMS has developed a systematic approach to collecting
and interrogating data around the impact of KTD on young people’s mental
wellbeing, which is measured through an evaluation framework using data
from young people’s feedback forms. The data shows that 32% of
participating young people currently identify as having a mental health issue,
although this continues to slowly decrease as young people engage more with
the programme. Following their involvement in KTD, 78% strongly agreed that
this had had a positive impact on their mental health and wellbeing. 51% of
young people currently engaged in KTD identify as neurodivergent.

The young people’s feedback form includes the 78 positively worded items
from the Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Well-being scale for assessing a
populations’ mental well-being. Following their involvement in KTD, 78%
strongly agreed that this had had a positive impact on their mental health and
wellbeing. An additional question has been added to identify young people
with neurodivergent tendencies and is showing that since March 51% of
young people engaged in KTD identify as neurodivergent, which is significant
when designing new activity in terms of additional barriers these young people
may face.

13
24



The following graph highlights the impact on young people’s mental health
and wellbeing using the Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale
(SWEMWBS) from the responses given by the young people between June
2023 and September 2025 who completed Part 1 and Part 2 of the young
people feedback forms. Part 1 is completed at the start of the programme and
Part 2 at the end, following a one-to-one session with the Project Worker.
Using a dashboard, we can track progress and although this relates to a
smaller number than those engaging in the programme, it provides a good
benchmark for future delivery.

The graph below shows the difference between Norfolk young people at the
start and end of their engagement against the National Average (2013
research). At start our young people were -1.30 BELOW the National Average
and at end they are +0.46 ABOVE the National average. This is based on 217
Part 1 responses (completed at the start of the activity) and 147 Part 2
responses (completed at the end of the activity) completed by young people
between Jan 2024 and September 2025.

s
Kick the Dust - Data Summary [ [ fhorfolk
Average SWEMWBS results at activities Start and End = =
: e e National Comparison - Start and End
@ Average of Start - SWEMWBS (Metric) @Average of End - SWEMWES (Metric)

National Medians SWEMWES taken from Mational Library of Medicine {2013}

Difference between Start Difference between End
and National Medians and National Medians

-1.30 0.46

niform Name

SWEMWBS Rating by Percentage of Total

& Start SWEMWES @% End SWEMWES

u
.

o 5 10 15 20 25 30
Average of Start - SWEMWBS (Metricl and Average of End - SWEMWES (Metric}

SWEMWABS Rating Stats

Rating Start Count End Count Eati!lg 9% Start SWEMWBS % End SWEMWBS
-

High £5.00 78.00 “High 47.75% 55.71%
Moderate 92.00 61.00 Moderate 51.69% 43.57%
Low 1.00 1.00 Low 0.56% 0.71%

% Start SWEMWBS and % End SWEMWBS
. .-‘ S n

Rating

Voices of young people

‘The main thing I've worked on has been communication as well as teamwork.
That has definitely improved for me, and it's always been one of those things
that has never really been my strong suit up until now’

‘I'd say my favourite thing that I've done so far has been the one where we
had to record a small video...it allowed me to use my skills in an effective way
which in certain parts of my life has not necessarily been easy to do’— ‘and in
terms of specialist skills, | mean really liking... especially visual and audio
media, it definitely allowed me to lean into those strengths a bit more’. — ‘I've
never been like been recorded with a camera before, like a proper

14
25



professional like film, I've not done that before. | feel like that's greatly
benefited me’

‘I'm from Norfolk and I live at home, but last year | took a break from uni. |
took a year out and | found that quite isolating...l just felt quite stuck for a bit
with how to meet people my age and so | thought I'd give it a go and
see...going to the Heritage Collective first was like a slowly kind of getting
myself back into learning, but also socialising with people my age.’

‘Just being able to sit, communicate and knowing that your feelings are
validated, that's a skill that I've learned very, very well’. — ‘Coming to Kick the
Dust is therapy. I'm able to come in, talk about whatever, go home and then
be like, okay, well, now I'm so excited for next week’. YMCA client (Great
Yarmouth Heritage Collective)

Kick the Dust - Norfolk Museums Service

7. Visitor figures
Visitor figures for the period will be circulated at the meeting

8. Recommendations:
That the Area Museums Committee notes the report

Report Contact:

Dr Robin Hanley

Assistant Head of Museums (Head of Service Delivery)
Shirehall, Market Avenue, Norwich NR1 3JQ

Tel: 01603 493663 e-mail: robin.hanley@norfolk.gov.uk

15

26


https://www.museums.norfolk.gov.uk/article/56133/Kick-the-Dust
mailto:robin.hanley@norfolk.gov.uk

Agenda Item 6

TRUE’S YARD

FISHERFOLK MUSEUM

TRUE’S YARD FISHERFOLK MUSEUM REPORT

Report by Museum Curator

December 2025

1. Temporary exhibitions and events at True’s Yard Fisherfolk Museum

1.1 Exhibition Programme.

Exhibition Room: The Loss of the Beautiful Star — 150" Anniversary of the Fife fishing
fleet disaster. In part sponsored by the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West
Norfolk.

Old Smithy: Deck the Halls: Christmas Tree Decorations Through the Ages. This
exhibition was made possible by funding from the Love Your Market Town Fund. There
is a tie in Christmas Tree trail with partnerships with local businesses in the town centre.
It will run until 16" January.

1.2 True’s Talks

Our autumn programme launched on 25" September and concluded 13" November. 8
talks all by local speakers very popular with audiences 40+ each talk. The Spring series
will launch in February 2026.

1.4 Pat Midgley Memorial Lecture

The 11" Pat Midgley Memorial Lecture. Memorial Space Project. The speaker was
Associate Professor David Petts who delved into the world of fishing on the North
Northumberland Coast.

The evening also included songs by the King's Lynn Shanty Singers in commemoration
of the 150th anniversary of the Scottish fishing fleet Disaster off the Norfolk coast and
involving King's Lynn fishermen. Proceed went to True's Yard Fisherfolk Museum and St
Monans Memorial Space Project.

The lecture was held on the 150th anniversary of the Scottish Fishing Fleet Disaster and
the King's Lynn Shanty Singers performed songs on the evening to raise monies for the
St. Monans.

Other Museum Developments

2. Events

December

3" 150" Anniversary of the Great Gale Service at St Nicholas Chapel at 10am followed
by wreath laying at Hardwick Road Cemetery at 12noon. To commemorate the 1875
Great Gale and its fatal consequences.

27



7th December Xmas Lunch (FOTY)

10" Winter Tales and Tunes of the North End 1:45pm

10th December Carol Service at All Saints Church at 6:30pm.

11" December Christmas Quiz

18" December Merry Christmas Presence- A Victorian Children’s Ghost Tour.

19" December True’s Yard Volunteers Christmas Party Noon.

The Museum closes for Christmas at noon on 19" December 2025 and reopens on 6™
January 2026.

Income Generation

3.1 Museum Fundraising

22nd May TY1000 Club recruitment event

10™ August Alison Gifford Tea Party

5t September Robert Anderson Garden Party

4™ November Dinner in Memory of Fisherfolk and Sailors

3.2 Friends of True’s Yard
We are most fortunate to have an active and supportive Friends group. They have recently
helped the Museum with funds towards the move of Activity.

4. Partnerships

4.1 St Monans

As part of the 150" Anniversary of the Great Gale fishing disaster we have strengthened
our links with St Monans who opened a memorial garden on 22" November. As part of
our side of the partnership we have put on a series of events.

1) Friday 17th October and the tour of the streets of the North End in 1875. On a grey
Friday evening 30 people met at TYFM and £160 forthcoming in donations.

2)  Sunday 26th October: Fisherfolk Memorial Walk in Hardwick Road Cemetery. On
a rainy afternoon 15 people attended and £60 raised.

3)  Saturday 1st November: the NCC Chairman Cllr Tom Fitzpatrick opened the
Museum’s Beautiful Star Exhibition + 20 people present. It was accompanied by folk
song from Stuart and all watched the short (emotional) film from St Monans.

4)  The Museum’s annual maritime dinner at the Duke’s Head Hotel took place on 4th
November for 28 guests (not principally a fundraising but £300 raised). Paul R gave a
short talk on the events of 150 years ago which has reconnected King’s Lynn and Fife
fisherfolk communities.

5)  True’s Talks- the final event of the season on 13th November- Paul R on The Great
Tragedy of the Scottish Fishing Fleet & King’s Lynn.

4.2 Dragon Festival

True’s Yard took part in the town wide Dragon Festival on 8" November. It was a well
attended events with a variety of activities at the Museum and around the town. We were
pleased to be able to participate with this event.

28



5. Learning and Outreach
5.1. Activities

Half Term Activity Days
Halloween Activities

Our morning and afternoon sessions were fully attended. One thing we noticed was that with
the changing nature of family dynamics some children had as many as 3 adults accompanying
a single child. When sat down they took up space at the tables. This led to one family
requesting a refund as they couldn’t get to the crafting tables. To prevent this in future we
will have 1 adult accompanying a child for free but for each further adult there will be a
charge.

5.2 Oral History Project- Capturing Memories

Our Oral History Committee is hard at work. With some members of the recording team
ill the focus has been on cataloguing and organising the existing collection into the same
format and producing an up-to-date accessible inventory for access via our new reading
room computer and eventually online. A spreadsheet has been created and once the new
server arrives the oral histories can be added to Modes, which has not previously been
possible due to limitations on disk space.

5.3 Social Media
Currently the Museum’s Facebook page has 2.6k followers; Instagram 502 Followers
(last report 475). Our TikTok has 282 followers (last report 202 followers).

5.4 Website

Our new website created in-house is being built over the winter by Gaynor and volunteers
to replace our current website. It will be hosted by Krystal Hosting on their free charity
website hosting package. This will allow online ticketing to be fully integrated and future
access to the library and archive catalogue.

5.5 The Tearoom

The tearoom improvements are complete and it looks much better. The pantry conversion
has provided much needed storage space.

The new menu is much more accessible for those with intolerances and dietary
restrictions.

There has been a marked improvement in the quality of our coffee thanks to the new
coffee machine and we are selling our coffee in the shop.

We are charting over the next 6 months the difference it is making to income generation.

8. Visitor Numbers

Visitor Numbers April-October 25/26:6,904 Last year: 7,593.

This summer has seen a drop in visitors in other attractions. Cost of living, weather and
unreliable public transport have been noted as potential causes.

29



6 Resource Implications
Grants

St Margaret’s and St Nicholas Parish Trust £500 for new fire extinguishers.
Love Your Market Town £1,320
Love Norfolk £3,000 towards training and equipment to improve our volunteering offer.

7 Recommendations
That the Committee notes the report.

Originator of report:

Lindsey Bavin

Museum Curator

True’s Yard Fisherfolk Museum
Tel: 01553770479

e-mail: info@truesyard.co.uk

30


mailto:info@truesyard.co.uk

T€

Stories of Lynn and Tourist Information Centre Visitor Figures

Stories of Lynn

Month TOtQI Cumulative | Schools
entries

Sep-25 2093 5773 0

Oct-25 730 6503 118

Nov-25 393 6896 91

Tourist Information Centre
In Person Telephone Email Overseas Pontoon Accommodation | Tourism Pack

Month Enquiry Enquiry Enquiry Visitors Enquiry Enquiry sent out
Sep-25 1089 166 22 5 8 2 6
Oct-25 735 181 15 0 3 1 4
Nov-25 483 73 13 0 4 1 3

/ Wa)| epusby



A LS S

Marketing Highlights
2025

Molly Taylor S — L

T
il

Marketing Manager e e e < WITITANTI

oy




Seasonal admission and marketing approach

Free access: Ticketed entry:

1 Oct — 31 Mar 1 Apr—30 Sep

— supports families, schools, - targeted marketing
and local visitors focuses on driving paid

visits

Marketing focuses on local
access, repeat visits, and
audience targeting during
paid months

Strong local and
seasonal appeal




@  WODF:

i A Cagejamﬁovx of Dogg

(i

ve

-
{‘
. !

~ SRRE §
& 3 T o

Special Exhibition
1 October 2024 — 29 June 2025

th
Special Exhibition It

1 October 2024 — 29 June 2025

WODY-

LYNN

MUSEUM

=

A’ C@V@\omhw\ D‘F Dog% =
An exhibition celebrating ' !
our canine companions, e
featuring natural history, z
archaeology, and art works -
including works by Sir Edwin
Landseer, Andy Warhol and

David Hockney.

Lynn Museum
Kings Lynn
PE30 1NL

Info and tickets:
lynnmuseum.norfolk.gov.uk

oo, Supporied by )/ """—‘:"'
@) vl iuestn m Norfolk :" % | ARTS CouNciL @ Heritage & Norfolk
©® @Lynn_Museum Museums % | ENGLAND . Fund County Council

@ @Lynn_Museum ——— e,
J&3. Funded by King's Lynn & Newman
#LMWoof =% UK Government  West Norfolk Legacy THE KENNEL CLUB




Ge

Speciai exﬁibition

Lynn Museum, King's Lynn

15 July 2025-31 May 2026

From a galaxy far, far away comes

an absolute must-see for Star Wars fans.

May The Toys Be With You
showcases a premier collection
of vintage Star Wars toys

and original cinema posters
(1977-1985), celebrating the
iconic design and collectability
of the franchise.

St WIrg Dl ARG iy Y sk o
= | ARTS COUNCIL Herita Norfolk
| ENGLAND é Fund g€ g County Courvil

Supperied

Funded by oo Ao
e . Kng's Lynn & Newman
&5 UK Government oz Norfolk Legacy

Thursday 17 July
10.30am-11.30am
Space-themed Mini Museum

Club under 5s session

Friday 25 July
10am-1Zpm

Space-themed Coffee Morning

Thursday 31 July
10am-12.30pm and 1.30-4pm
Star Wars Family Event

Wednesday 23 July-Sunday 3
August
Star Wars-themed Family Trail

Saturday 16 August
10am, 11.30am, 1pm and 3pm
Star Wars Peg Doll Workshop

1-hour workshop for ages 8+

Find all of our events at:

museums.norfolk.gov.uk/events

Open Tuesday-Saturday 10am-5pm
Sunday 12-4pm (April-September)
Free admission October-March

Lynn Museum

Market Street i Lynn Museum
Info and tickets: 6

King’s Lynn ° @Lynn_Museum , °

PE30 1NL lynnmuseum.norfolk.gov.uk

01553 775001

@ @Lynn_Museum




=
John Pigtler




TR TS TN -
g VT T WiTate oones dina e se .
and ca avcite g
used great excitement. Then for wee - traded with T s
v §r h ks the London and Europe. He lived at Cli
om the huge coppers was the river in King’s Lynn ‘ e
he pansh of South Lynn, an N ' This is a fictional account, based on his life

\\ing savour.

Glos

40 shillin
approxir
or £10,8(
Blubber:
skin of v\
Coppers -
¥ boiling ligl
\ ~a0pers -
»oden b

jithe - @
m the w/

J sands — &

, master mariner and \ater trader, recalls
century Lynn whaling trade in his 1872

Aemories of Lynn'.
idged account of his recollections.

streel!
p;nzig =P
amembe’ ¢
14"‘ centu’y

R

PR e R

I

>



B

E
'

L.

: - MY Z SEr ;
T T O I Y R Y Ly 3 3 5 "_1'

~ S ol . s A 3 2233 PSTRTRATIIVIIN | o.

= ;f'_re 25D 7k 3 oY==k : REA) FOx8"

<




6€

o
>

County Council

What's on at Norfolk Museums

Take a last look at the Woof! exhibition at Lynn Museum, try Pilates in the
Strangers' Hall garden, and find out about Refugee Week at Ancien

House. Book a curator tour of the exhibition One Self: The Creative Llfe of

Colin Self at Norwich Castle, and find out how to become an environment

volunteer at Gressenhall.

Events are indluded with admission and run dunng standard opening imes unless
otherwise stated. For more events at all the Nodfolk Museums, visit our online

calendar

Lynn Museum - New Exhibition: May The Toys Be With You
Opens Tuesday 15 July

May The Toys Be With You showcases one of the UK's finest collections of vintage Star Wars toys
and original cinema posters from 1977-1985. It is a celebration of the now highly collectable
vintage toy line, iconic design work and art of the Star Wars movies.

-
Lynn Musoum - Woof: A Celobration of Dogs Me “‘o

Ends Saturday 28 June

It"s neQrty time to sy g:»:u:b,-c to owr celebration of cwr canine friends. Haad to Lynn Musoum
to wave a final paw to this wonderful axhibitson which Indudes natural hestory, archaeclogy and
artworks of both lecal and national Importance.



oy

Special Exhibition:
May The Toys Be With You

15 July 2025 - 30 May 2026

From a galaxy far, far away comes an absolute
must-see for Star Wars fans.

May The Toys Be With You showcases one of the
UK's finest collections of vintage Star Wars toys and
original cinema posters, from 1977-1985.

E]f_frﬁ@ For tickets and more information i l

“'”‘f §5. scan the QR code or visit
Hr e Norfolk
[EfeSg# Iynnmuseum.norfolk.gov.uk

wNorfolk  agg Fundedby

Ancient House - Father Christmas
and Christmas Crafts

Lynn Museums - Christmas
Through the Ages Family Event

Gressenhall - Christmas 1945

5 For tickets and more information
5. scan the QR code or visit
F - museums.norfolk.gov.uk

ARTS COUNCE i - Morfaolk b I r'-""'{""'“":-'
WAL AR o=t Fund v E UK, Goverriment



1%

Citizen Space, the new service-wide visitor survey platform, provides Norfolk Museums Service with a consistent and
scalable evidence base across all ten sites.

Monthly post-visit surveys (online ticket buyers), combined with on-site QR access

Data can be gathered on:

* Net Promoter Score

* Visitor ratings

* Motivation for visiting

* Age range

* Gender identity

e Ethnicity

* Norfolk Museums Pass membership

* Household income

* Education

* Disabilities, neurodivergence or long-term health conditions
* How people heard about the museum



Norfolk

Museums Pass

Your ticket to a year of visits to
Norfolk’s top 10 museums

{1}

Museums




Norfolk
Museums
Pass*

I
w




- ‘~ - 4 —
; <=
’< OM. »E

‘ Wy .‘L?ﬂ .

“aripow
.—;r: ..:n 8

-1.Q._

ndatd v .:\&

: S -
=k ﬂ_.r.,.u:“....% ./V-

:i Iﬁﬁm% ,
TS ey,

&mLLL& o

" ¢L-.q1. T ™~
TOULAD Vs e =y =y 3o

Ol Mg e 1 " ..,....._5
mww:a \:u.-.!::nu
LHOSERYEL NOGNOY

T

uaﬂ"

Ez_cu

.jgj A 7 |

33
I\N \l,
AN YEL LDN . —
Sge 9] WO P ®
it:g‘

. CLL

0 QJQ.J

r Uamwon 89 Jelim j v ey
TSI (e WL AWV

- - e L — - lﬁual|~.
W 2Ty NANNYRL i
" L"F ,. _'-.“t,_~ R AAI\.. H” .ll.-"..h -.i »
A mww:: LELNN0D 2
" INO4SNYHL NOONOT
< gieiciisle
AANYian
= V‘..
b/
3 ¥
sSasng |
m# m#:xEM%EM%SB:Q. R

| Okl [

r\U..oAT N TRANSPC
w A5 ul« W BUS
h-..)..i.. ) ’ :
e

] .ﬂ‘«. | DF] 7% 2T RE 0T 9= 0
?v_qbv D Ol .‘CH.E.. > Z.zz
__ .LWCJ(.? ! N 0 KDIoo

A O O

T
S

ik

wn:n,.:hz::J
e » JOJSNYNL NOGNO1

SRRNARNAN ‘_._ﬁ

[y - S s
l kv
( e h ..u... Ou... y .
qM- 5 R ..L ....M..\'.‘ .
.“. 4 o \i.tr.!.. Qs...
. e T -
. R
& 22N
- .mw .MPJ
AR Q. S
b e - CQ o
(99



Norfolk

Norfolk

Norfolk

T Museums Museums Museums el —
2 Pass® Pass® Pass®
* & : s One pass. Ten museums.

One pass. Ten museums.

One pass. Ten museums.
Unlimited discovery. museums.norfolk. gov.uk/pass

Unlimited discovery. museums.norfolk gov.uk/pass Unlimited discovery. museums.norfolk gov.uk/pass

S
st -
.
-
"
-
e
— o
Seden .
.
- .
- — p :
- i & 5 3 | i
- - a 3 A
— - - - e — N e i e i i e ~ .= e M A . A e & e -— B P — - S—— ~—— - - ~ - - - >
7 — Ny e————— _— _———— -
e e b S IRed ey S B e W LA R ul s R s Nt R » Bl 2o : = — F
> e — —— - - —~ —_ -
» - s - 3 3 - h-. n a = > ~ - ~ -
> ! - 4 ’ - - -




Norfolk
Museums
Pass®

Norman Knight
2 adults and children

4583218239664939

Norfolk
Museums
Pass®

Norman Knight
2 adults and children

4583218239664939

Norfolk
Museums

Norman Knight
2 adults and children

4583218239664939




LY




Visit as often as you like
with a Norfolk Museums Pass.

Gressenhall Farm
and Workhouse

Expenence Norfolk’s rural past and Cromer
the lives of workhouse residents. '
Explore interactive displays,

meet rare breed animals, and enjoy

the woodland playground.

Open every day, March—-October
Gressenhall, Dereham NR20 4DR

Lynn Museum

Home to Seahenge, Lynn Museum
reveals West Norfolk's past through
Bronze Age finds, Roman treasures,
and fairground gallopers.

Tuesday-Saturday
Market Street, King's Lynn PE30 TNL

Ancient House Museum

Explore Thetford's history in a Tudor
merchant’s house. Discover the story
of Maharajah Duleep Singh and life
in a 1901 kitchen.

Norwich Dereham
Norwich Castle Gressenhall Farm
Museum of Norwich and Workhouse

Strangers’ Hall

Tuesday-Saturday 2 mrd
White Hart Street, Thetford IP24 1AA Great Yarmouth Ancient House Museum
Time and Tide King's Lynn
Elizabethan House R e
Tolhouse Gaol ¥

Cromer

Cromer Museum

: \§ )'\_
«( \\ﬁ%

o ey

\ W

2 | Y {

)
Ll




OurTop 5

oldest artifacts

of all time.

Norfolk
Museums
Pass*

o
Strangers’ Hall

Wander through one of
Norwich’s oldest houses, filled
with period rooms and stories
of merchant families, and relax
in the walled garden.

Norfolk
Museums

Norwich:
Afternoon
John Crome

% %k Kk k

“The Norfolk Museums Pass has
been brilliant for our family.
We've discovered new favourite
days out every month. The kids
love the hands-on exhibits and it
works out to be great value!”

Sarah T, Norwich
Mum of three

* Norfolk

. Museums

Basé‘ r,‘_\..'/, il ,
Roman Cavalry
Helmet

Unearthed from the riverbed near
Worthing in Norfolk, this stunning
cavalry helmet dazzles with its
thin sheet of gilded bronze and
intricately embossed sea-dragon
and eagle-head motifs.




0S

Norfolk Museums Pass
sales growth

600

500

400

300

200

100

75

Jun 25

Cash, card, cheque Direct Debit
Web sales
515
461 469
738 252

Jul25 Aug 25 Sept25 Oct25 Nov25



TS

June 2026 — June 2027
Working exhibition title: Unboxed: Secrets from the Lynn Museum Store

In-house exhibition showcasing rarely seen objects
Broad themes allow:
Family events
Talks and specialist programming
Community and partner activity

Strong potential to attract local audiences and culturally engaged visitors from further afield



[Ac]

Share key events through local and
regional networks

Support e-bulletin sign-ups
Continue advocacy for Lynn Museum as
a high-quality cultural offer in the town

Help reach audiences who may not yet
be aware of Lynn Museum’s programmes
Encourage visitors to provide feedback
via online survey




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Report of the Assistant Head of Museums
	KING’S LYNN MUSEUMS REPORT

	6 True's Yard Report
	7 Stories of Lynn and Tourist Information Centre Visitor Figures
	8 Review on Marketing Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21


